ALASKA STATE LEGQ SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COVM TTEE
March 11, 2008
8:08 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Bob Roses, Vice Chair
Representati ve John Coghill
Representati ve Kyl e Johansen
Representati ve Craig Johnson
Represent ati ve Andrea Dol |
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Representative Bob Lynn, Chair
COWM TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 406
"An Act relating to a requirenment for conpetitive bidding on
contracts for the preparation of election ballots.”

- HEARD AND HELD

HOUSE BI LL NO. 396
"An Act relating to and increasing the anount of the 2008
per manent fund dividend; and providing for an effective date."

- MOVED HB 396 OQUT OF COW TTEE
SENATE BI LL NO 253
"An Act relating to the appointnment of nenbers of the Board of
Gane; and providing for an effective date.™
- MOVED SB 253 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 406
SHORT TI TLE: CONTRACTS FOR PREPARATI ON OF BALLOTS
SPONSCR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) FAI RCLOUGH

02/ 19/ 08 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) STA, FIN
03/ 04/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- March 11, 2008



03/ 04/ 08 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/ 06/ 08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
03/ 06/ 08 (H Heard & Held

03/ 06/ 08 (H M NUTE( STA)

03/11/08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: HB 396

SHORT TI TLE: | NCREASE 2008 PERM FUND DI VI DEND
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) THOVAS

02/ 19/ 08 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
02/ 19/ 08 (H) STA, FIN

03/ 06/ 08 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 06/ 08 (H) Schedul ed But Not Heard
03/11/08 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 253
SHORT TITLE. MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GAME
SPONSOR(s): SENATOR(s) HUGG NS

01/ 28/ 08 (S) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 28/ 08 (S) RES

02/ 16/ 08 (S) RES AT 11: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 16/ 08 (S Schedul ed But Not Heard

02/ 18/ 08 (S) RES AT 3: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 18/ 08 (S) Moved SB 253 Qut of Committee

02/ 18/ 08 (S) M NUTE( RES)

02/ 19/ 08 (9 RES RPT 6DP 1NR

02/ 19/ 08 (S) DP: HUGA NS, GREEN, MCGUI RE, STEVENS,
WAGONER, STEDMAN

02/ 19/ 08 (9 NR: W ELECHOWSKI

02/ 27/ 08 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

02/ 27/ 08 (S) VERS|I ON:  SB 253

02/ 29/ 08 (H) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

02/ 29/ 08 (H STA, RES

03/ 05/ 08 (H RES AT 2: 00 PM BARNES 124

03/ 05/ 08 (H -- MEETI NG CANCELED - -

03/11/08 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

KEVI N FRALEY, General Manager

Print Works;

Owner Print Wrks Super Software, Inc.

Honer, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to HB 406.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- March 11, 2008



PATRI CK FOSTER, A. T. Publishing and Printing

Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
406.

GAIL FENUM Al, Director

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of Elections

O fice of the Lieutenant Governor

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
406.

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer

Central Ofice

Di vi sion of CGeneral Services

Department of Adm nistration

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answer ed questions during the hearing on HB
406.

REPRESENTATI VE ANNA FAI RCLOUGH

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: As prime sponsor, nade a request during the
heari ng on HB 406.

REPRESENTATI VE Bl LL THOVAS

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 396 as prine sponsor.

TIM JOYCE, Mayor

City of Cordova

Cordova, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of the Gty of Cordova
in support of HB 396.

PAUL D. KENDALL

Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of hinself during the
heari ng on HB 396.

JERRY BURNETT, Director

Adm ni strative Services Division

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
396.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- March 11, 2008



ELLI E FI TZJARRALD, Director

Di vision of Public Assistance

Depart nent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Responded to questions during the hearing
on HB 396.

JODY SI MPSON, St af f

Senator Charlie Huggi ns,

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON  STATEMENT: I ntroduced SB 253 on behalf of Senator
Huggi ns, prine sponsor.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

VICE CHAIR BOB ROSES called the House State Affairs Standing

Conmittee neeting to order at 8:08:09 AM Representati ves
Coghi Il , Johnson, G uenberg, Doll, and Roses were present at the
call to order. Representati ve Johansen arrived as the neeting

was in progress.

HB 406- COVPETI Tl VE BI DDI NG FOR BALLOTI PREP

8:08: 53 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 406, "An Act relating to a requirenent for
conpetitive bidding on contracts for the preparation of election
ballots."

[Before the conmttee as a work draft was the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 406, Version 25-LS1487\C, Bullard,
2/ 28/ 08. ]

8:11: 53 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES reopened public testinony [closed on 3/6/08].
8:12:56 AM

KEVI N FRALEY, General WManager, Print Wrks; Owmer Print Wrks
Super Software, Inc., stated that he has printed the state's
ballots for the last three to four election cycles. He referred

to his witten testinmony [in the conmittee packet] and clarified
that he is not accusing anyone of inpropriety. He stated, "I

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- March 11, 2008



don't have any kind of evidence to push an agenda |ike that. I
want to stand on ny own record and ny own quality and ... nmy own
passion for doing a good job with the el ection process.”

MR. FRALEY said he feels that he is under attack, but recognizes
that that may be unfounded. He enphasized that his biggest
concern "is that we are tal king about two vendors.” He said the
conpany that did certifications no |onger offers them He said
the State of Alaska is going to have to cone up wth sone kind
of certification process [printing ballots] "is not just putting
ink on paper.” M. Fraley said there are many printers in the
state that have the ability to do the job; however, there needs
to be a process in place that keeps the printer under check to
make sure that these ballots are printed properly and that
accountability is taken into consideration. He offered an
exanple to describe the intensity of the accountability required
when printing ballots, noting that one ballot picked up and set
down accidentally in another pile can nean soneone voting on a
bal | ot intended for another precinct.

8:16:17 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES cl osed public testinony. He announced that he
would allow the commttee to ask questions of M. Fraley, M
Noblin, and M. Foster - the latter two having testified during
the 3/6/08 hearing on HB 406.

8:16: 38 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG observed that in the conmttee packet
is one substantive letter, dated 3/3/08, from M. Fraley, and a
rebuttal letter from M. Foster, dated 3/7/08. He asked if
those two letters "are the main docunents.”

8:17: 20 AM

MR. FRALEY confirned that his letter expresses "his nmain
argunent and concern in opposition to HB 406."

8:17: 32 AM
PATRI CK FOSTER, A. T. Publishing and Printing, stated that he
chose the format of a letter in which to address sone of the

points in M. Fraley's letter.

8:17:53 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said M. Fraley's nmain concern, as
expressed today, is in regard to the inportance of quality. He
questioned if the consideration in choosing printers would be
l[imted only to cost if HB 406 were to pass, or if quality and
security would al so be consi derati ons.

8:18: 30 AM

GAIL FENUM Al, Director, Central Ofice, D vision of Elections,
Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, responded that the bill, as
witten, would result in a bid that would be awarded strictly
based upon | owest cost.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked if that is the nornmal basis upon
whi ch the state considers bids.

M5. FENUM Al offered her understanding that there are a variety
of bidding processes, including an invitation to bid and request
for proposals (RFPs), both of which she said she believes allow
ot her factors of consideration to be nade.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked, "But you believe this one does
not ?"

M5. FENUM Al replied that that's her understanding. |In response
to a followup question from Representative G uenberg, she said
she has not ascertained a legal opinion from the assistant
attorney general regarding this matter; however, she said the
division has consulted with Vern Jones, the chief procurenent
officer for the state, who she said "offered testinony to that
effect at the |last conmttee hearing."

8:20: 02 AM

VERN JONES, Chief Procurenent Oficer, Central Ofice, D vision
of General Services, Departnent of Adm nistration, stated that
when the departnment uses the term "bids,” it means a situation
in which it offers specifications, and the responsible bidder
that neets those specifications and responds with the |owest
price is the w nner. He said typically when the departnent
wants to evaluate quality and other factors in addition to
price, it uses either conpetitive sealed proposals or RFPs. He
concluded, "My reading of this is that it does say conpetitive
bids, and to us that neans | ow bids award."

8:20:51 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to page 4, |ine 6,
of Version C, which specifies "the |owest responsible and
responsi ve bidder". He asked M. Jones if, after review ng that
| anguage, his answer remains the same or changes.

MR. JONES responded that he would maintain his answer.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked what |anguage M. Jones would
suggest to ensure that the division could consider the
[printer's] ability to performin a satisfactory nmanner, rather
t han choosing a printer based solely on cost.

MR. JONES suggested that the words "conpetitive bids", on page
2, line 2, of Version M could be changed to "conpetition"

VICE CHAIR ROSES offered his understanding that Representative
Johnson had di scussed possible | anguage to address this issue at
the last hearing of HB 406, and an anendnent would be
forthcom ng.

8:22:48 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON asked M. Jones, "If we were to bring you
under the procurenent code, would that allow you to do the RFP
and ... stretch it that way, or would we need to put in this
bill that it would be by RFP?"

MR. JONES answered, "That would certainly allow us to do RFPs

and proposals if this were subject to the procurenent code. | t
would be a choice at that point." In response to a followup
question from Representative Johnson, he explained that

subj ecting the service to the procurenent code would open up a
nunber of possibilities. He expounded:

It could be done via bid, where ... the division would
specify as they needed and award based on | owest
pri ce. They could offer a request for proposals, in

which they could set a nunber of criteria for quality
and experience and qualifications and certification
and so on, in addition to price. The procurenent code
also has alternate procurenment types in there:
single source, energency, |limted conpetition
There are small procurenents; if any of these jobs
were to be under $50,000, it could be done under smal
procurenents, which would be essentially getting
guotes or informal proposals.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- March 11, 2008



8:24:42 AM

REPRESENTATIVE JOHNSON said he wants to "open it up to
conpetitive bidding," but also wants a timng that will ensure
quality. He asked if inserting |language to the title regarding
having bids every five years and adding a new section that would
bring the process in the procurenent code would still allow for
a sole source contract under the procurenent code.

MR. JONES r esponded:

I'"'m not sure what <changing the title would be.
Subj ecting the service to the procurenent code could

potentially result in an alternate procurenent
situation, depending on the circunstances. |If clearly
the intent was spelled out sonewhere that it would be
conpeted, |I'm sure that the division would follow that
direction.

8.26:11 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said the suggestions for anending the
bill, made by Representative Johnson, are conplex, and he would
like to see a witten anendnent.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON suggest ed maki ng t he changes
conceptual ly.

8:27:28 AM

REPRESENTATI VE ANNA FAI RCLOUGH, Alaska State Legislature, as
prime sponsor of HB 406, expressed her wish that the commttee
hold the bill and hear it at its next neeting to give her tine
to work on the bill Ilanguage with an attorney. She expl ai ned
that she had contacted the Division of Elections, as well as the
Ofice of the Lieutenant Governor, and was told explicitly "that
they needed to be left out of the procurenent code, and that's
why this is witten how it is.” She said she would be happy to
ensure "that we're under conpetitive bid and under the
procurenent code," and she thinks it is appropriate to have a
five-year contract period, "with a possible renewal period for
good conduct." Representative Fairclough said the bill would
create AS 15.15.031, which would ensure that an Al aska printer
gets the job, and she would want to secure that guarantee should
the entire Section 15.15.031 be deleted fromthe bill.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she spoke at length with M.
Fral ey, who raises sonme valid points. However, she stated, "Hi s
conpany conpetes in Anchorage already for the sane vote." She
said she respects that M. Fraley is protecting an asset that he
has devel oped, but it is possible to conpete for bids with the
State of Alaska. Representative Fairclough said she understands
that M. Fraley has done an exceptional job in responding to the
State of Alaska in all aspects of his performance, and she
respects that and applauds it; however, she stated her belief
that "that sane expectation should be set for all who would want
to enter into this process and understand that accountability.”

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH asked the committee nenbers to |et her
know any other concerns they may have before she talks to
“procurenent,"” so that she can neet those expectations.

REPRESENTATI VE ROSES said he would hear HB 406 another day to
gi ve Representative Fairclough the time she requested. He asked
comm ttee nmenbers to continue with their |ine of questioning.

8:30:15 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL suggested that there may be issues of
ti mng under the procurenent code. He nentioned process issues
that "may be nore conplex than you can do under this." He
suggested an RFP in relation to Section 15.15.031. He said, "It
woul d be nore directive, and then kind of takes the [Ofice of
t he] Lieutenant Governor ... out of the hot seat with regard to
having to make choices.” He said bidding [for ballot printing]
is probably quite different than any other bidding issues in the
state because of the tim ng invol ved.

8:31: 03 AM
REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she is interested in finding out what
the additional costs in doing an RFP mght be, including the

time to put together the RFP and the additional staff that may
be needed.

8:32:31 AM

MR. JONES responded to a question from Representative Johansen
as follows:

If this were subject to the procurenent code, single

source procurenent requests over $50,000 go to the
chief procurement officer, so | would be making that

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -9- March 11, 2008



deci si on. However, | believe that the situation
that's gone on before, if it were subject to the
procurenent code, could not stand. | don't know any
basis to be able to nmake a determ nation under the
procurenent code that this qualifies as a single
source procurenent. | think obviously the only reason
that it's been able to be awarded the way it is, is
because it's not been subject to the procurenent code.
So, | don't see a basis sitting here for nmaking a ...
single source award for a service like this when there
are nunerous conpani es capabl e of perform ng.

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN asked for clarification that M. Jones
meant that "you couldn't just sinply decide that this conpany
was going to get it, because of the rules of the procurenent
code. "

MR JONES said the decision would be that of the chief
procurenent officer, but it would have to be supported by
factual evidence that docunents and proves that the conpetitive
seal ed bidding or proposal process is not practical and award to
a single, individual firmis in the state's best interests. He

stated, "And, at least from what |'ve seen, | doubt that |I'd be
able to nmake those two determnations ... to satisfy the
statute."

8:34: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG directed attention to the second to
| ast paragraph of the second page of a letter in the conmttee
packet, witten by M. Fraley, [dated 3/3/08], which read:

The bottom line is that there are two certified
printers in the state of Alaska to print AccuVote

bal | ot s. Premier Election Solutions is no |onger
certifying any new vendors for ballot printing
Passage of HB 406 wll renove control from the

Di vi sion of Elections for the sake of one vendor.

REPRESENTATI VE ~ GRUENBERG t hen directed attention to a
corresponding rebuttal from M. Foster, [dated 3/7/08 and
included in the conmmttee packet], which read as follows
[original punctuation provided]:

This neans only that Diebold no |onger is taking $5000

from Alaskan printing conpanies wanting to print
bal | ots. Now, all conpanies can participate in the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 10- March 11, 2008



process, not just two of wus. There is available an
emai| statenment from Prem er Elections Solutions that
they are out of the business of certifying, but are

willing to work with individual state's desiring sone
form of printing certification. They recognize the
printing of ballots requires much nore than sinple ink
on paper.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that he had read the excerpts
as clarification for M. Fraley, and he asked M. Fraley if M.
Foster is correct.

MR. FRALEY said although the question is a difficult one to
answer, he would have to "lean towards 'no.'" He said he spoke
with Premer Elections Solutions yesterday "to clarify that
statement.” He conti nued:

They did specifically wrk wth the State of
California to develop a certification process for
printers in California. They would be willing, if the
state was to pay a contract to Premer Elections
Solutions, to develop sonme sort of certification
process for printers in the state of Al aska.

My argunment is that in order for this bill to be
useable in the way it's witten, that process would
have to be sorted out so that there is some kind of a
certification systemand a [qualifying] on a yearly or
every-five-years basis. ... Until nore printers are
certified, we are still talking about two printers.

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG asked M. Foster if he would like to
respond.

8:38: 52 AM

MR. FOSTER noted he had spoken with M chael Lindroos of Premer
El ections Sol utions. He said the conmpany provides ball ot
readers for "20-sone states,” and California is the only state
wi th which the conpany worked on an agreenent. He stated, "I do
believe that M. Fraley's right that sone ... form of
certification is required, because not just any printer can do
the ballots. But | do know that it's a sinple process to be
worked out." He said it may involve a contract or working with

Di ebol d; however, he said D ebold does not sound too interested
in certifying individual printers.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- March 11, 2008



8:40:16 AM

MR. FOSTER, in response to a question from Representative
Johnson, said sone states print their state ballots at a county
| evel . Sonme counties have the authority to single source their
printing, while sone "go to conpetitive bid." But by and |arge,

he stated, a vast mmjority of states do have a conpetitive
bi ddi ng process.

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked if Diebold is the sole source for
pur chasi ng voting nachi nes.

8:41: 20 AM

M5. FENUM Al said Diebold is the only provider of the AccuVote
optical scan voting machi ne used by the State of Al aska.

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL asked what role Di ebol d pl ays in
certification.

M5. FENUM Al said she is not famliar with the certification
process for printers. She indicated that the software,
hardware, and firmmare that is used in the D ebold nmachines are
certified at a federal |evel.

VICE CHAIR ROSES proffered, "And that's for the machines
t hensel ves, but not the printing of the ballots; those are two
separate issues."

M5. FENUM Al answered that's correct.
8:42: 44 AM

REPRESENTATI VE  FAI RCLOUGH, in response to a request for
clarification from Representative Guenberg, said that after
speaking with M. Fraley, she learned that the State of Al aska
was sold hardware and told at the time of the purchase that
"Diebold at the tinme, now Premer Elections [Solutions]" would
provide a certification process for the machines and for the
printers in the state of Alaska. However, since the transaction
was nade, the conmpany has shut down its certification process
for the state's printers. She stated her intention to call the

conpany to find out if the state will now have to "pick up a
certification process as an expense." Representative Fairclough
opined that just because the state was sold "a past bill of

goods that is inappropriate,” that does not nean there should be

no conpetition in the process.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH said she is not advocating for M.
Fraley to lose his bid or for the other certified printer in the
state to get the bid; what she is saying is that there should be
conpetition. She stated her belief that the sole reason for
[selecting a printer] should not be based on the |owest bid.
She said she believes in quality assurance, but does not agree
that the state should now stay with one person because that's
the only person who qualified under a certification process that
is no |onger avail able. She said she has discussed the natter
with M. Fraley extensively and thinks his conpany has done a
remar kabl e j ob; however, "when one person only has a product to
sell, it can beconme expensive over tine." Representati ve
Fairclough said M. Fraley has convinced her that during the
course of tinme in which he has printed ballots for the State of
Al aska, he has not increased his bid.

REPRESENTATI VE FAI RCLOUGH stated that wthout certification
available to other printers, the State of Alaska could be "at a
di sadvantage in receiving a fair price for the citizens of
Al aska. " She said she does not nean her remarks to be
di sparaging. She remarked that [M. Fraley] has spoken well to
"all of the issues that are there," but she does not "buy into
fear factor when it cones to capitalism” She said she wants
Al aska to get a fair return for its noney. She related that M.
Fraley had told her his belief is that "there was liability with
that certification process,” and she said she does not want to
expose the state to that liability. She said she would research
for the facts related to this matter.

8:46: 31 AM

MR. FRALEY confirmed that a representative of Premer Elections
[ Solutions] told him yesterday that the reason the conpany
stopped its certification process was because of liability. He
said the problem specifically was that printers were |owering
their standards and "they were becoming frustrated with the need
to recertify because of the quality standards that were being
i gnored.” He said one area of certification relates to a
requi renent to neet certain ink and registration specifications.
He explained that means that an inage nust be printed in a
certain location on the ballot on the front and back, because
both sides are scanned sinultaneously and the inage has to line
up perfectly. Anot her area of certification is the cutting of
the ball ots. The quality of the ballot and the machinery is
what is certified.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 13- March 11, 2008



8:48: 14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE = FAI RCLOUGH, in response to a remark by
Representative Johnson, concurred that the attorney general
should be involved if Al aska does not have support for a system
in which it has invested.

8:48: 42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG said he thinks this problem is
sol vabl e, and he hopes the conmttee will allow Representative
Fairclough to proceed as she has suggested rather than offering
t he conceptual anmendnent previously discussed by Representative
Johnson [ but not offered].

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he would not nove to adopt an
amendnent today in deference to the bill sponsor

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced that HB 406 was heard and hel d.

HB 396- | NCREASE 2008 PERM FUND DI VI DEND

8:49: 53 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO. 396, "An Act relating to and increasing the
anount of the 2008 pernmanent fund dividend; and providing for an
effective date."

8:50:49 AM

REPRESENTATI VE BI LL THOVAS, Al aska State Legislature, presented
HB 396 as prinme sponsor. He paraphrased the first paragraph of
the sponsor statenent, which read as foll ows:

The high cost of fuel is affecting everyone, and it is

hitting Al aska particularly har d. Qur state
contributes a significant amount of natural resources
to the nation, yet we still pay sonme of the highest
prices for fuel. Soaring fuel <costs translate into

high prices for groceries, building materials, and all
other goods. Famlies are being forced to chose
bet ween putting gas in their vehicles or food in their
mouths. |If these kinds of hardships continue wthout
relief, it will force many famlies to |leave the state
for a | ower cost of |iving.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS noted as a point of reference that the
cost of electricity in Haines ranges from 22 to 58 cents per
kilowatt, while the cost is 8.5 cents in Juneau and 8 cents in
Anchorage and Wangel |l . He pointed out that there is a handout
in the commttee packet showing the cost of gas around the
state.

8:.52: 58 AM
REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS said the proposed bill would treat

everyone, rich or poor, equally, [by increasing the anount of
the 2008 permanent fund dividend (PFD) check by $500 per

recipient]. He said the price of oil is currently $107 dollars
a barrel, and at 700,000 barrels, massive anmounts of noney are
going into the state's coffers, up to $3.6 billion in savings.

Sonme of that savings should be shared with the people of Al aska,
he opi ned.

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS said the Alaska's Cear and Equitable

Share (ACES) bill read, "It is the intent of the legislature
that the legislature will responsibly invest the anmount received
after Decenber 31, 2007, as a result of this enactnent of this
Act that exceeds the anmount that would have been received."” He
said the language in that bill lists intended appropriations,
including "statewi de energy needs of Alaskans to assist wth
grave, rising energy costs." He stated, "I have not seen a bil

around that addresses that equally to everybody."
8: 55: 53 AM

TIM JOYCE, Mayor, City of Cordova, testified in support of HB
396. He echoed the bill sponsor's statenment that energy costs
are becomng a major expense for famlies in Al aska today, far
outstripping inflation in the state. He listed the follow ng
prices in Cordova: propane, $4.10 a gallon; fuel oil for hone
heating, as of 3/7/08, $4.38 a gallon; stove oil used in certain
furnaces for home heating, $4.49 a gallon; gasoline, $4.43 a
gallon; and M. Joyce's own electric bill for one nonth, $218
for 667 kilowatts of energy. He said it is difficult to make
conpensation for the price of energy when it rises so rapidly.

8:58:31 AM
VI CE CHAIR ROSES noted that the next person to testify, Paul D
Kendal I, had sent nunerous pages of information to the commttee

by facsimle, and he asked M. Kendall to focus on his position
regardi ng the PFD and "what that $500 would | ook Iike."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- March 11, 2008



8:59: 06 AM

PAUL D. KENDALL, stated that he is concerned that the
| egislature and the general public is not aware of what 1is
happeni ng behind the scenes with "sonme of these conpanies.” He
spoke of a full-page advertisenent placed by BP to build the
first hydrogen power station in Scotland, which would serve
250,000 hones, and he said there is no reason that that could
not be built in Al aska. He enphasized the inportance of
ensuring that future generations will be aware of and involved
in state of the art [energy sources].

MR. KENDALL said, as stated in his letter [dated 3/10/08], that
he would favor the noney [proposed through HB 396], but
indicated that he would like to see it spent in "sone smart

way. " He listed sone exanples, such as: the Susitna Dam
Project, Tom Staudenmers' all-Alaskan owned "Gid Network
Consol i dati on proposal , " weat heri zati on and conservation

outlays, and rural energy subsidies. He stated, "Wien you | ook
at all of these things conbined, energy is so large | just don't
see how you cannot address this in sone [Alaska Gasline
| nducenent Act] (AG A)-type hearing, where everybody cones on

board as quickly as possible. | think time is of the essence
here."
9:01: 10 AM

MR. KENDALL said the projected nunber of PFD checks for 2007 is
604, 149, and, multiplied by $500 each, the total cost would be
approximately $300 million. Continued for a three-year period

the amount would be about a billion dollars. He said nost
peopl e don't realize that out of an entire energy bill, only 11-
15 percent is applied to distribution costs, while 65-80 percent
of it goes to the feed stock provider, which M. Kendall posited
"provides no incentive for themto be taken into account or for
the political leaders to plan for the energy which | think has
to have a new direction.”

MR. KENDALL said [the proposed legislation] is well-intended,
but indicated that he has another suggestion. He stated that a
properly functioning free enterprise system is supposed to
adjust itself by natural market nmeans in the comrercial

i nstitutional, i ndustrial, and mlitary application. He
explained his concern is that there is no way for a single
famly home to absorb those costs. He tal ked about the factors
that negatively affect society.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 16- March 11, 2008



VR. KENDALL  suggested that the state could use the
aforementioned $300 million to "put in enough negawatts" to
serve sonmewhere in the area of 150,000 hones with electricity
for 25 years. He asked that the commttee carefully weigh how
it chooses to spend its funds. M. Kendall said he would Iike
to see a discussion take place conparable to that which occurred
during consideration of AG A, where "everybody is sworn in and
testifies.” He enphasized the inportance of dealing with the
i ssue of energy.

M. KENDALL said if the legislature does decide to pass HB 369
and "di sperse the $500," he would like to see check-off boxes at
the bottom [of the PFD application] asking everyone if he/she
would like to give that noney to another cause, and, if so, how
much? He indicated that he would give his $500 toward the

purchase of one of nmany energy products. If 1,000 PFD
applicants did the sane, he said, that would be a half mllion
dol |l ars. He outlined other details of his vision to create a

peopl e's co-op of sone type, allow renote villagers to apply for
a [wind] turban, and apply the energy only to the single famly
home, which M. Kendall characterized as "the foundation of all
of our society." He continued:

It's the hone and the rental. Everything that you
have, l|adies and gentlenman - everything - comes from
those two structures; they are the foundations of all
society. And before you can get to that, you have to
have the air, ... water, and energy. So, the energy
is, in essence, a fundanental erosion of that which
begets you everything else. Those oil conpanies
cannot sell the oil, wthout having a society which
represents thousands of comunities |ike ours. It is
on that on which they bring these huge increases, so
you have to stop that assault right now.

MR. KENDALL offered to send nore information to the conmttee
pertaining to alternative energy sources. He concluded, "If you
address this issue, you, l|ladies and gentlenen, wll portend the
next structure of the next society which is going to cone one
way or another."”

9:06:41 AM
REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS related that there is an energy bil

currently before the Senate Finance Conmittee, which proposes
t he renewabl e energy that M. Kendall is pronoting.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- March 11, 2008



9:07:36 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES cl osed public testinony.

9:07:51 AM

REPRESENTATI VE THOVAS rem nded the conmttee that HB 396 is a
one-year, one-tinme bill. He said, "Hopefully we'll find a
permanent solution that wll treat everybody equitably."” In
response to a question from Representative Coghill, he confirned

that it is not his intention to create an additional dividend
every year.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL warned there is always a danger in
offering sonething like this once, then finding it difficult not
to do it again.

9:09:10 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG poi nted out a typographical error - an
i nconpl ete sentence - in the analysis portion of the fiscal note
prepared by the Permanent Fund Dividend Division, dated 3/3/08.

9: 09: 59 AM

JERRY BURNETT, Director, Admnistrative Services D vision
Department of Revenue, in response to Representative Coghill,
said the departnent believes that the appropriation required for
HB 396 woul d be $305 million.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked M. Burnett how much the permanent
fund earned and what is now available for appropriation from
t hose earni ngs.

MR. BURNETT responded:

| don't have the exact nunbers with ne. [ The] | ast
financial statenment | |ooked at ... was ... sonmewhere
around the $4 billion range there. The realized
earnings, which [are] what the dividend is calcul ated
on, were - from ... July 1, 2007, through January 31,
2008 - about $2.2 billion.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL expl ained that he is trying to figure out

the annual earnings conpared to the anobunt available for
appropriation - "what that $300 mllion-plus is going to |eave

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- March 11, 2008



as a whole there." He nentioned inflation-proofing and the PFD,
and he asked M. Burnett to help him understand "in big chunks,
what that | ooks |ike."

MR. BURNETT replied that "in big chunks," regular dividends are

approxi matel y $1 billion this year, based on likely
cal cul ations; realized earnings are, year-to-date, in excess of
$2 billion; and the earnings reserve is in the neighborhood of
$4 billion. He added, "So, | don't think this has any effect;
it should not create a concern at this point." He expl ai ned,
"Even though market earnings are down, realized earnings are not
down, necessarily, ... and that's where you get your earnings

reserve and your ability to pay dividends."

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said, "Normally, we are depositing noney
into the fund on a consistent basis for inflation proofing." He
offered his wunderstanding that "normally that's short of a
billion dollars.”

MR BURNETT said he does not know what the anmount will be this

year, but it wll be based upon inflation and will probably be
in excess of $1 billion.
9:12:43 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON said he knows there is a calculation by
which the PFD is figured out, and he asked how the $305 million
appropriation would affect future dividends.

MR. BURNETT responded that what the future earnings will be is
unknown, but paying a larger dividend this year would have an
effect on all future dividends. The effect to each dividend
woul d be in the $10-$20 range, he esti mated.

9:14: 10 AM

VICE CHAIR ROSES asked M. Burnett to confirm that a one-tine
increase in the anmount of the PFD, if sourced from surplus noney
deposited once to the permanent fund in the amount of $305
mllion, would have no effect on future dividends.

MR BURNETT confirned that's correct.

9: 15: 25 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL referred to [the analysis section of the
fiscal note prepared by Ellie Fitzjarrald, Director, Public
Assi stance, dated 3/3/08], which read as foll ows:

This legislation increases the 2008 Permanent Fund
Di vidend by $500 in recognition of the recent increase
in energy costs. The additional $500 paynent will be
funded by transfers from the earnings reserve account
to the dividend fund.

The Food Stanp, Social Security Supplenental |ncone
(SSI), and Adult Public Assistance (APA) prograns
count the Permanent Fund Dividend (PFD) as inconme in
determ ning whether a person or household qualifies
for benefits. PFD noney that is not spent and is kept
after the nonth of receipt is also considered an
avai l abl e asset (cash on hand or noney in the bank)
for program applicants.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked, "Are all of those in the hold
harm ess, or only part of then?"

ELLIE FITZJARRALD, Director, Division of Public Assistance,
Department of Health and Social Services, responded as follows:

Peopl e who receive Adult Public Assistance and [ Soci al
Security Supplenental Inconme] (SSI) are also held
harm ess, but the permanent fund dividends have been
high enough in the last few years that all of their
benefits are hold harn ess. So, this additional $500
paynent, the one tinme for this fiscal year, would not
add additional hold harmess expenditures to them
because ... the PFDs are high enough that they're
al ready put on the hold harnl ess program

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL said the cost is picked up by the state
"for the hold harniess.” He asked, "So, what would be the
anticipated | evel under this condition?"

MS. FI TZ expl ained as foll ows:

What happens is that their benefits that are currently
general fund are replaced with the hold harmess

benefit that is paid for with the ... earnings of the
permanent fund; so, it's that special appropriation in
statute. ... So, there is no additional general fund

cost or savings, if that's what you're asking.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL responded:

But there is a cost to the permanent fund earnings,
and so, help nme understand what that is. Because
we're going to give them $500, and what 1is the
underside of that? Because we're going to nake up the
social service benefits wth permanent fund earnings
noney. And so, what |I'mtrying to see is $500, plus
what ?

MS. FI TZJARRALD st at ed:

Qur annual permanent fund hold harm ess expenditures

are about $12 mllion for all prograns. The reason
this fiscal note only ... adds costs for the Food
Stanp program 1is because the ... majority  of

expenditures are on the Adult Public Assistance and
peopl e who are receiving Social Security Supplenental

[ nconmre] Benefits .... That hold harm ess benefit
that they get is already in that $12 mllion that we
have budgeted for hold harnless. This one-tine

paynent isn't going to add a new hold harmess
expenditure for them we're already replacing their
benefit. ... The maxi mum inconme a person on SS|I can
have is $640, and then when you add the Adult Public
Assi stance of about $300 - some receive a little nore,
sone a little less - it's about $962 a nonth, the
maxi mum anount of income sonmebody on APA can have.
So, since the PFDs have been |ots higher than $962 a
month, we're replacing their benefit already. So,
this bill does not affect those expenditures at all,
because we're already giving them a hold harnless
benefit, because their PFDs are high enough that we
have to replace it entirely now.

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL offered his understanding that the
aforenentioned $12 nmillion is what it takes to pay the federal
gover nment back. He estimated that would equal approximtely
$3-$4 off of each Al askan's PFD check.

IVS. FI TZJARRALD suggested that M. Burnett could answer
guestions regarding the anount of each PFD that goes towards the
paynment of the hold harm ess expenditures. She related that
those expenditures have significantly reduced the caseload for
the "tenporary assistance famlies."

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- March 11, 2008



9:20: 22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE DOLL said she does not favor a discretionary
f und. She stated that she would rather see the nobney go to
those who really need it rather than across the board.

9:21:22 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said the need is there; people on fixed
i ncomes are enduring huge pressure these days. Sonme peopl e may
m suse the proposed $500 boost to their PFD check, but those in
duress would not, he predicted. He comented that handing out
noney to everyone could increase the noney comng back into
communities; however, he stated that it is true that a shot in
the arm makes people think things are better than they actually
are. He stated, "At this point, with all the bills in play in
this legislature, | think this is one solution that needs to
nove forward."

9:23: 59 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said both previous speakers have
expressed sonme of his concerns. He noted that during a
comunity council neeting in his district, several people asked
about the bill, and he thinks the idea of getting an extra $500
is a popular one. However, he stated, "Cracking open the egg is
hard once the egg is cracked."”

9:25: 20 AM

REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN echoed the sentinment of Representatives
Coghill and G uenberg that "once this gets out"” there is the
possibility that the legislature could |ose control over the
appropriation. He said he thinks there are other prograns
through which the legislature can appropriate noney to help
those in need. Furthernore, the noney could be used to support
"facilities that wll take <care of the <cost of energy
per mnent|y." He said he would not hold up the bill, but he
expressed concern about witing checks to people 50 years down
the road for those who cannot afford energy, when the problem
coul d have been addressed now.

9:27:20 AM
REPRESENTATI VE JOHNSON concurred wth Representative Coghill

that the bill should pass out of conmttee to "be part of the
di scussion" and "part of the m x"; however, he expressed concern

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- March 11, 2008



that voting raises for citizens is "just the first step to the
downfal |l of denocracy.™

9:28:14 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said there are several things he thinks
the conmmttee needs to keep in mnd: First, a big chunk of the
state's noney conmes from the oil industry, and the permanent
fund has been a success story of how to turn a nonrenewable
source into a renewabl e one. Next, he said the anmount of noney
going to the needy of Alaska through Welfare and health care has
"crested $2 billion" since he has served in the legislature.

The nunber of the recipients of that noney "fall[s] short of
200,000." He said there could be an argunment that by giving the
peopl e of Al aska an extra $500 each, the legislature could be
"subsidizing the things that we want to stop." Al so, he said
payi ng out $500 could open a discussion of whether or not the
earnings of the permanent fund should "ever only be used for
personal income uses." He warned that there could be federa

problens on taxation. Last, he said the legislature is
significantly "matching"” a |owincone heating assistance program
fromthe federal government, which is a huge benefit.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL clarified that he had said the bil
should go forward to put pressure on the |legislature to
determine if it will take care of those with the greatest need
first. He said this issue needs to propel the discussion of
"hydro 1issues,"” because if hydro power can be delivered to
greater portions of Al aska, everybody in the state will benefit.
He said the legislature has tried to "equalize out sone of those
things through several state prograns,” but nust invest in
| oner-cost energy in the state. He reiterated that although
giving $500 would be like giving a man a fish instead of
teaching himto fish, it wuld be a shanme for the legislature to
sit on $4 mllion and make no investnent. He said he would like
to see discussion of HB 396 push forward the discussion of the
previously nentioned alternative energy bill currently in the
Senat e Finance Committee.

9:32: 34 AM

REPRESENTATI VE COGHILL noved to report HB 396 out of committee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, HB 396 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Commtt ee.

SB 253- MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF GAME

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 23- March 11, 2008



9:32: 47 AM

VI CE CHAIR ROSES announced that the |ast order of business was
SENATE BILL NO 253, "An Act relating to the appointnent of
menbers of the Board of Gane; and providing for an effective
date."

9:33: 09 AM

JODY SIMPSON, Staff, Senator Charlie Huggins, Alaska State
Legi slature, introduced SB 253 on behalf of Senator Huggins,
prime sponsor. She said the bill, if enacted, would change the
expiration date for the ternms for nenbers of the Al aska Board of
Gamre from March 1 to June 30. She said the statute change will
acconplish the follow ng: prevent problens that arise from the
short time frame for newly appointed board nenbers to prepare
for the large regulatory board neetings that occur near the
begi nni ng of March, annually; reduce confusion anong the public
regardi ng which board nenber to contact on issues; clarify a
time by which appointnents to the board should be nade; and
bring the terns in line with those of the Al aska Board of
Fi sheri es.

M5. SIMPSON said the proposed change will also void problens
resulting from having two or three of the seven board nenbers
serve in an unconfirmed status during the Mirch neeting each
year. She stated, "Few nenbers are aware their March neeting
voting record wll be examned during their |legislative
confirmation hearing, and there can be wundue scrutiny on a
single vot e i nst ead of a voting record in over al
qualifications.” She stated that the proposed adjustment in the
term expiration date recognizes the inportance of the Al aska
Board of Gane and the conplexity of the issues that cone before
it.

9:35:42 AM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to report SB 253 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal
notes. There being no objection, SB 253 was reported out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmtt ee.

9:36: 14 AM

VI CE CHAI R ROSES announced the upcom ng comrittee cal endar.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- March 11, 2008



REPRESENTATI VE JOHANSEN announced an upconming neeting for the
subconmittee addressing bill's related to conflict of interest.

ADJ OURNMENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Committee neeting was adjourned at
9:37:38 AM

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 25- March 11, 2008



